
GENERAL AGREEMENT ON „ e m r m 
RESTRICTED 

C/M/248 

TARIFFS AND TRADE 3 A p r i l 1991 
Limited Distribution 

COUNCIL 
12 March 1991 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

Held in the Centre William Rappard 
on 12 March 1991 

Chairman: Mr. Lars E.R. Anell (Sweden) 

Page 

Subjects discussed: 1. Committee on Budget, Finance and 2 
Administration 

(a) Report of the Committee 
(b) Membership 

2. Uruguay - Renegotiation of Schedule XXXI 3 
- Extension of waiver 

3. United States - Countervailing duties on 4 
fresh, chilled and frozen pork from 
Canada 

- Panel report 
4. Japan - Restrictions on imports of 5 

certain agricultural products 
- Follow-up on the Panel report 

5. United States - Customs user fee 8 
- Follow-up on the Panel report 

6. United States - Denial of MFN treatment 9 
as to non-rubber footwear from Brazil 

- Recourse to Article XXIII:2 by Brazil 
7. United States - Caribbean Basin Economic 16 

Recovery Act (CBERA) 
- Biennial review 

8. Trade and environment 17 
9. Working Group on Export of Domestically 27 

Prohibited Goods 
- Extension of mandate 

10. United States - Restrictions on imports 27 
of tuna 

- Panel composition 
11. EEC - Measures on imports of baler 28 

twine and other sisal processed 
products 

12. Restrictions on exports from Peru 29 
following the cholera epidemic 

91-0432 



C/M/248 
Page 2 

Page 

13. United States - Section 337 of the 30 
Tariff Act of 1930 

- Follow-up on the Panel report 
14. Union of Soviet Socialist Republics - 30 

Report on~progress in the ongoing 
economic reforms 

1. Committee on Budget. Finance and Administration 

(a) Report of the Committee (L/6818) 

Mr. Broadbridge (Hong Kong), Chairman of the Committee, introduced the 
Committee's report (L/6818) which contained recommendations on the 
rescheduling of the deadline for presentation of the final 1991 budget, and 
the contributions to be assessed on Costa Rica and Macau following their 
respective accession and succession to GATT. He recalled that in July 
1990, the Council had agreed that the Committee defer presentation of the 
1991 budget proposals until 31 March 1991. However, as it was still 
unclear how GATT might look in the future, the Committee recommended that 
this date be extended to 28 June 1991. On a related issue, the Committee 
had agreed to extend the contracts of staff engaged for the Uruguay Round 
to 31 July 1992. 

Following Costa Rica's accession on 24 November 1990, the Committee 
had recommended that a contribution to the 1990 budget amounting to 
SwF 4,476, and an advance to the Working Capital Fund amounting to 
SwF 21,121, be assessed on that Government. Following Macau's succession 
on 11 January 1991, the Committee had also recommended that a contribution 
to the 1991 budget amounting to SwF 35,691, and an advance to the Working 
Capital Fund amounting to SwF 22,949, be assessed on that Government. 

The Council took note of the statement, approved the Committee's 
specific recommendations in paragraphs 5, 18 and 19 of the report, and 
adopted the report in L/6818. 

The representative of Tanzania stated that his country had made every 
effort to meet its obligations resulting from the Committee's 1988 review 
(L/6384) of the basis on which contributions from least-developed 
contracting parties were to be assessed. He noted, however, that these 
countries had encountered difficulties in reconciling themselves with the 
Committee's decision at that review requiring them to repay their 
accumulated arrears, albeit in instalments. While Tanzania continued to 
meet the instalment payments on its arrears, as well as its current obli­
gations based on its trade share, it reiterated its request to the 
Director-General that a limit be placed on the period for which arrears had 
to be met, and that an appropriate mechanism be found to assist the 
countries in question. He recalled that the Director-General had been 
mandated to report to the Committee on the operation of the arrears 
repayment schemes, on the basis of which the Committee would undertake a 
review with a view to making appropriate recommendations to the Council. 



C/M/248 
Page 3 

Tanzania requested that such a review be conducted at an early date; this 
would be appropriate and fair for the least-developed contracting parties. 

The Council took note of the statement. 

(b) Membership (L/6814, L/6817) 

The Chairman recalled that Belgium and the Netherlands regularly 
alternated as members of the Committee. Accordingly, and on the basis of 
the communications from these Governments in documents L/6814 and L/6817 
respectively, he suggested that the Council take note of Belgium's 
intention to withdraw from membership of the Committee and invite the 
Netherlands to be represented thereon. 

The Council so agreed. 

2. Uruguay - Renegotiation of Schedule XXXI 
- Extension of waiver (L/6783, C/W/666, L/6819) 

The Chairman recalled that by their decision of 7 December 1990 
(L/6783), the CONTRACTING PARTIES had waived until 31 March 1991 the appli­
cation of the provisions of Article II to enable Uruguay to adjust its 
schedule of tariff concessions. He drew attention to Uruguay's request for 
a further extension of the waiver (L/6783) and to a draft decision on this 
matter (C/W/666). 

The representative of Uruguay said that his Government had been 
continuing the relevant consultations with interested contracting parties 
in order to conclude the negotiations regarding its Schedule of tariff 
concessions. However, this task had turned out to be more complex than 
previously foreseen, and Uruguay therefore requested an extension of its 
waiver until 31 December 1991 so as to conclude this process. 

The representative of the European Communities recalled that the 
Community had on several occasions clearly stated its position as to 
conditions under which a waiver under Article XXV should be granted, both 
in general and in the particular case of Uruguay's import surcharges. The 
Community was not willing to compromise its position on the matter. 
Uruguay's current request presented contracting parties with a "fait 
accompli" and tested the Community's position to the limit. If the 
Community was willing, or rather obliged, to agree to the extension at the 
present meeting, this was purely for procedural reasons in order to provide 
the opportunity to resolve finally and definitively by the end of 1991 the 
very unsatisfactory situation as regards Uruguay's tariff schedule. 

The Council took note of the statements, approved the text of the 
draft decision in C/W/666, and recommended that it be adopted by the 
CONTRACTING PARTIES by postal ballot. 



C/M/248 
Page 4 

3. United States - Countervailing duties on fresh, chilled and frozen 
pork from Canada 
- Panel report (DS7/R) 

The Chairman recalled that at their Forty-Sixth Session, the 
CONTRACTING PARTIES had referred this matter back to the Council for 
further consideration, and that at its meeting in February, the Council had 
agreed to revert to it at the present meeting. 

The representative of Canada said that his delegation's position on 
this matter had been clearly stated at the February Council meeting and 
that it was unnecessary to go into its details again. He called on the 
Council to adopt the Panel report at the present meeting. 

The representative of the United States recalled that at the February 
Council meeting, his delegation had requested deferral of discussion on 
this report because the determination of both subsidization and of threat 
of material injury in this case were then under challenge pursuant to the 
dispute settlement mechanism established between the United States and 
Canada under their Free-Trade Agreement (FTA). Since then, the admini­
stering authority responsible for the determination of injury had reversed 
its earlier determination and had concluded that there had been no injury 
to the domestic US industry in the case of Canadian pork. Without an 
affirmative determination of injury, the countervailing duty case would be 
terminated. 

He recalled that the GATT Panel had recommended that the CONTRACTING 
PARTIES request the United States either to reimburse the duties levied to 
offset subsidies for the production of live swine, or make a new subsidy 
determination consistent with the requirements of Article VI:3 and 
reimburse duties found to have been improperly levied. If the US counter­
vailing duty action against pork was terminated, it would be unnecessary to 
consider either of those recommendations, as they would in fact have been 
fulfilled. He underlined that no duties had actually been collected by the 
United States on Canadian pork imports and that if the determination that 
there was no injury stood, all cash deposits of estimated duties would be 
returned with interest. He noted that there was one remaining avenue of 
challenge available to the US industry in this case. However, that 
procedure was not a routine appeal, and it was not known as yet whether it 
would be invoked. If it was, the process of challenge would be completed 
within a short period of time, and the United States would then be in a 
position to address fully the substance of the GATT Panel report. 

The representative of Canada reiterated his delegation's view that the 
GATT Panel and the two panels under the FTA dealt with different issues. 
In any event, while the two latter panels might be of interest to the 
Council, they were not part of the GATT framework. His delegation believed 
that regardless of the outcome of the bilateral avenues being pursued 
between his Government and the United States, it would be important for the 
Council to adopt the report at hand. The issues established therein by the 
Panel were important in terms of the future calculation of countervailing 
duties by contracting parties and could usefully form part of the GATT 



C/M/248 
Page 5 

jurisprudence. He called on the United States to follow the same practice 
at the present meeting that it was arguing should be made the rule in the 
Uruguay Round negotiations. 

The representative of Japan supported adoption of the report at the 
present meeting because this would place a multilateral discipline on the 
use, or abuse, of countervailing measures. This was the fourth time that 
the report was being considered by contracting parties, and his delegation 
was concerned that this might give rise to serious doubts as to the 
credibility of the GATT dispute settlement process. The bilateral 
arrangements and procedures between the United States and Canada were not 
necessarily relevant to the case at hand and could not justify further 
delays because multilateral discipline and the GATT Panel report stood on 
their own. He strongly urged the United States to agree to adoption at the 
present meeting. 

The representative of the European Communities said that the Community 
had continuously supported adoption of the report for reasons of both 
substance and principle. He reiterated the Community's view, expressed at 
the February Council meeting, that a bilateral dispute settlement procedure 
turning on a different legal basis could not be invoked as a justification 
for delaying operation of the GATT's multilateral dispute settlement 
process. The Community, therefore, continued to support adoption. It was 
watching with great interest to see what procedural precedent the United 
States was trying to establish. 

The Council took note of the statements and agreed to revert to this 
item at its next meeting. 

4. Japan - Restrictions on imports of certain agricultural products 
- Follow-up on the Panel report (BISD 35S/163, L/6370, L/6389, L/6810) 

The Chairman recalled that the Council had considered this matter at 
its February meeting. It was on the Agenda of the present meeting at the 
request of the United States. 

The representative of the United States recalled that at the February 
Council meeting, his delegation had expressed interest in action taken by 
Japan to bring the policies addressed by the 1988 Panel report (BISD 
35S/163) into compliance with its GATT obligations. The United States 
remained concerned about Japan's indication that it did not intend to 
terminate the import restrictions as of 1 April 1991. Japan's view 
appeared to be that it could avoid its GATT obligations because when the 
report had been adopted, Japan had expressed disagreement with the Panel's 
findings concerning certain dairy products and starch, and because the 
question of agricultural trade barriers was being addressed in the Uruguay 
Round. The United States did not find either of these to be valid reasons 
for Japan to continue to ignore its GATT obligations. The Uruguay Round 
negotiations were aimed at substantial progressive reductions of protection 
and of trade-distorting subsidies. Institutionalizing quotas found to be 
inconsistent with current GATT rules was inconsistent with the objectives 
that contracting parties had set for the Round. 



C/M/248 
Page 6 

The United States agreed with Japan's statement at the February 
Council meeting that it would be useful to consult further on these 
matters. It noted, however, that a number of other contracting parties had 
expressed an interest in this issue at that meeting, and therefore 
suggested that the proposed consultations be held under the provisions of 
Article XXII to allow these governments also to participate. His 
Government would welcome Japan's positive response to this suggestion, and 
hoped that such consultations would be successful in resolving the matter 
under consideration and obviate the pursuit of other courses of action. 

The representative of New Zealand noted that three years had passed 
since adoption of this report and that it had not yet been implemented 
fully. His delegation supported the US request for Article XXII consul­
tations to consider implementation; plurilateral consultations were 
entirely appropriate given the range of contracting party interests 
involved. In the light of its own substantial trade interests in this 
matter, and taking into account the 1958 procedures for Article XXII 
consultations on questions affecting a number of contracting parties' 
interests (BISD 7S/24), New Zealand wished to join in the consultations, 
which would facilitate a clearer understanding of the specific steps Japan 
had already taken to implement the Panel findings and allow contracting 
parties a better appreciation of Japan's intentions with respect to the 
outstanding items. They would also provide Japan with the opportunity to 
gauge the intentions and requirements of all interested contracting parties 
on these matters. New Zealand did not see such consultations as focusing 
on any of the underlying legal issues, since those had already been settled 
in a definitive way by the Council's adoption of the original Panel 
recommendations. 

The representative of Thailand said that his authorities had been 
following this matter closely and had noted Japan's intention, announced at 
the February Council meeting, to consult with the United States. He agreed 
with the US suggestion that it would be more appropriate to hold pluri­
lateral consultations. Given Thailand's trade interests in the matter, it 
wished to be associated with such consultations. 

The representative of Australia said that his country had a 
substantial interest in the elimination of Japan's quantitative restric­
tions on dairy and starch products and that it had raised the issue of full 
implementation of this Panel report on several occasions. While Japan had 
taken steps to bring some of the measures involved into GATT-conformity, it 
had not indicated any intent to phase out the remaining measures on a 
permanent basis. GATT obligations, however, were not "à la carte" and 
Australia strongly believed that Japan should stand ready to begin consul­
tations on a realistic timetable to remove the GATT-inconsistent measures 
on the two product categories concerned. Given its substantial trade 
interests in the matter, Australia supported the US request for Article 
XXII consultations and wished to join those consultations in accordance 
with the 1958 procedures as reaffirmed by the 1989 Decision . 

Improvements to the GATT dispute settlement rules and procedures 
(BISD 36S/61). 



C/M/248 
Page 7 

The representative of Chile said that the matter at hand was one of 
importance to his Government also. The partial implementation of the 
Panel's recommendations by Japan risked undermining the GATT dispute 
settlement system. Chile was concerned that this situation could continue 
indefinitely. It therefore supported suggestions that consultations should 
be held to resolve this matter under the provisions of Article XXII, which 
would give them a multilateral character. 

The representative of Uruguay said that his country also had an 
interest in this matter and had followed it closely for some time. His 
delegation agreed with others that consultations of a multilateral nature 
should be held to allow all contracting parties with an interest in the 
matter to participate. 

The representative of Canada indicated his delegation's interest in 
participating in such consultations. 

The representative of Argentina recalled that his delegation had on 
several occasions addressed the matter of non-implementation of panel 
reports that had been adopted by the Council. Argentina believed that the 
most appropriate way to resolve the matter at hand would be for Japan to 
indicate to the Council its intention to comply with the Panel's recom­
mendations. However, if some contracting parties believed it appropriate 
to hold consultations in order to ensure that Japan fully implemented the 
recommendations, Argentina could agree with this and would be interested in 
participating in such consultations. 

The representative of Japan, referred to his delegation's statement at 
the February Council meeting indicating Japan's preparedness to enter into 
consultations on this matter with the United States. These consultations 
would be held shortly, and Japan hoped they would result in a mutually 
satisfactory solution. He indicated that the US suggestion at the present 
meeting for plurilateral consultations under Article XXII, as well as the 
comments by other representatives, would be transmitted to his authorities 
for their consideration. 

The representative of the European Communities noted that at the 
February meeting, Japan had stated that given that the question of 
interpretation of Article XI:2 was being discussed in the Uruguay Round 
negotiations on agriculture, it hoped that a clear agreement would be 
reached on this issue amongst the participants therein. The Community 
wished to remind Council members that in respect of the Panel report on its 
own legislation concerning circumvention of anti-dumping duties , a matter 
also presently under discussion in the Uruguay Round, the Community had 
clearly stated the manner and the conditions in which it intended to 
implement that report. 

The Chairman noted that many representatives had expressed a strong 
wish that plurilateral consultations regarding this matter be held under 
the provisions of Article XXII, and that Japan's representative would 

EEC - Regulation on imports of parts and components (L/6657). 



C/M/248 
Page 8 

convey this sentiment to his authorities. He hoped that at its next 
meeting the Council would be able to agree on the consultations that had 
been proposed. 

The Council took note of the statements and agreed to revert to this 
matter at its next meeting. 

5. United States - Customs user fee 
- Follow-up on the Panel report (BISD 35S/245, L/6741, L/6822) 

The representative of the European Communities recalled that in 
October 1990, the United States had informed the Council of recently 
enacted legislation which had revised its customs user fee in response to 
the Panel report on this matter adopted in February 1988 (BISD 35S/245). 
At that meeting, the Community had welcomed certain positive results but 
had also raised some concerns, which were spelt out in greater detail in 
its recent communication (L/6822). The Community recognized that there had 
been progress in this matter, but continued to believe that the result was 
not satisfactory in GATT terms. The extent to which Community trade would 
be negatively affected remained to be seen in the light of more precise 
information on the manner in which the new legislation was actually 
applied; in this respect, L/6822 was to be seen as a form of "early 
warning". The Community would look carefully at the implementation of this 
legislation and fully reserved its GATT rights in respect thereof. 

The representative of the United States recalled that in its 
October 1990 communication (L/6741), the United States had noted that its 
customs user fee had been revised to address the Panel's findings and 
recommendations. By restricting the use of fee revenues to customs 
services on merchandise trade actually subject to the fee, instituting 
minimum and maximum fees and additional fees for manual entries, and 
excluding certain customs services from being funded by the fee, the new 
legislation directly addressed the issues raised by the Panel. Particular 
attention had been paid to the problem of excess revenue collection, 
particularly for high-value items, and to ensuring that the fee revenues 
collected at the time of importation approximated the general cost of 
processing the imported good, no matter how small its value. Great care 
had also been taken to develop a fee structure and a collection practice 
that were simple and did not themselves become trade barriers. The United 
States had no doubt that the new fee addressed the Panel's recommendations 
and met the criteria of Article VIII. His delegation believed it would be 
appropriate for the two parties to hold bilateral consultations so as to 
identify areas of concern and of possible confusion. The United States 
also hoped that other contracting parties currently applying customs fees 
substantially identical to the US fee, as it had been prior to the changes 
mentioned, would also alter their own fees to bring them into conformity 
with Article VIII. 

The representative of Japan said that his country had participated in 
the Panel proceedings as an interested party and shared many of the 



C/M/248 
Page 9 

Community's concerns. Japan would continue to follow up on the implemen­
tation of this report and reserved its rights to revert to the matter at an 
appropriate time. 

The Council took note of the statements. 

6. United States - Denial of MFN treatment as to imports of non-rubber 
footwear from Brazil 
- Recourse to Article XXIII:2 by Brazil (DS18/2) 

The representative of Brazil said his Government considered that, in 
the case at hand, the United States had violated Article I by implementing 
its Article VI obligations toward Brazil in a discriminatory manner. The 
United States and Brazil had held consultations under Article XXIII:1 on 
30 October 1990 to resolve this matter, but no mutually satisfactory 
solution had resulted. 

As outlined in DS18/2, the case at hand involved the interpretation of 
the general rule that when an obligation became effective, it should be 
implemented in a consistent manner. By implementing its Article VI 
obligations in one way in relation to non-rubber footwear from Brazil and 
in a totally different way in relation to products from other countries --
industrial fasteners from India, wire rods from Trinidad and Tobago and 
lime and certain textile products from Mexico -- the United States had 
violated Article I. While this dispute arose in the context of the 
Protocol of Provisional Application and Article VI, the issue of discri­
mination could have arisen in the context of the implementation of any GATT 
obligation. There was therefore no basis for denying Brazil the right to 
pursue this matter on the grounds that its Article XXIII action was an 
appeal of the report of the Panel (SCM/94) established under the Subsidies 
Code. Brazil had no intention of raising the issues that had been the 
subject of those earlier proceedings; those issues had arisen out of the 
interpretation of Article VI and the Subsidies Code, and Article I had not 
been part of the Panel's terms of reference. While Brazil had raised the 
MFN argument in those proceedings, this had been done to support its 
position that the United States had acted illegally under the Subsidies 
Code. 

In the consultations, the United States had indicated its view that 
the MFN issue had been considered fully by the Panel as had been stated by 
its Chairman. In Brazil's view, a mention of the MFN issue in the Panel 
report as part of its position could hardly be "full consideration". As 
for the Panel Chairman's statement, this had been a subjective statement of 
a generic nature -- the Panel's findings and conclusions did not support 
the statement if it indeed referred to the MFN issue. The US position 
appeared to be that by raising the Article I issue in the Code proceedings, 
Brazil was somehow precluded from pursuing this matter before the Council, 

Agreement on Interpretation and Application of Articles VI, XVI and 
XXIII (BISD 26S/56). 


